
COMPASS BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 
MEETING PACKET 

February 24, 2025 

1



Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho 
2025 COMPASS Board of Directors 

GENERAL MEMBERS SPECIAL MEMBERS EX-OFFICO MEMBERS 
Ada County: 
Commissioner Rod Beck 
Commissioner Ryan Davidson 
Commissioner Tom Dayley 

Boise State University: 
Drew Alexander, Associate Vice 
President for Campus Operations 

Governor’s Office: 
Jamie Neill 

Ada County Highway District: 
Commissioner Miranda Gold 
Commissioner Kent Goldthorpe 
Commissioner Patricia Nilsson 

Capital City Development 
Corporation: 
John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Greater Boise Auditorium District: 
Cody Lund, Executive Director 

Boise County: 
Commissioner Bob Callahan 
Commissioner Lindy Lindstrom 
Commissioner Clay Tucker 

Idaho Department of 
Environmental Quality: 
Troy Smith, Regional Administrator 

Southwest District Health 
Department: 
Nikole Zogg, District Director 

Canyon County: 
Commissioner Zach Brooks 
Commissioner Brad Holton 
Commissioner Leslie Van Beek 

Idaho Transportation 
Department: 
Jason Brinkman, District 3 Engineer 

Canyon Highway District No. 4: 
Commissioner Jay Gibbons 

Valley Regional Transit: 
Elaine Clegg, Chief Executive Officer 

City of Boise: 
Mayor Lauren McLean 
Councilmember Kathy Corless 
Councilmember Colin Nash 

West Ada School District 
David Reinhart, Chief Operating 
Officer 

City of Caldwell: 
Mayor Jarom Wagoner 
Robb MacDonald, Director of Public Works 
City of Eagle: 
Mayor Brad Pike 
Councilmember Mary May 
City of Garden City: 
Mayor John Evans 
City of Greenleaf: 
Councilmember Dan Hyer 
City of Kuna: 
Mayor Joe Stear 
Councilmember John Laraway 
City of Melba: 
Mayor Cory Dickard 
City of Meridian: 
Mayor Robert Simison 
Councilmember John Overton 
Charlie Rountree 
City of Middleton: 
Mayor Jackie Hutchison 
City of Nampa: 
Mayor Debbie Kling 
Councilmember Victor Rodriguez 
Tom Points, Public Works Director 
City of Notus: 
Mayor David Porterfield 
City of Parma: 
Brett Laird, Public Works Director 
City of Star: 
Mayor Trevor Chadwick 
City of Wilder: 
Chelsie Johnson, Public Works Superintendent 
T:\FY24\900 Operations\Board\2024 Board Packets\2 Cover 2 2024 Board Members.docx 

2



MAKING A MOTION:  
1. Seek recognition from the chair.
2. When you are recognized, say, “I move…”

State your motion clearly, concisely, and
completely.

3. Wait for someone to “second” your
motion.
A “second” does not imply the person making the
second agrees with the motion – only that he/she
agrees it should be debated.

4. Wait while the chair restates the motion.
Be prepared to provide the motion to the chair in
writing, if needed or requested, to ensure the
chair accurately restates it.

5. Respectfully debate your motion.
As the person making the motion, you have the
right to speak first, but do not have to. When you
speak, state your opinion then respectfully listen
to, and consider, other opinions.

6. Wait for the chair to take a vote.
After discussion is complete, the chair will call for
a vote.

7. Listen as the chair announces the result
of the vote.

To Change a Proposed Motion:  
Amend Motions to Raise Urgent Issues: 

• Question of privilege
• Orders of the day
• Object to consideration

Motions to Control Debate: 
• Limit debate
• Previous question

Motions to Protect Rights: 
• Division of the Assembly
• Point of order
• Appeal chair’s ruling
• Point of information
• Parliamentary inquiry

Motions to Choose Voting Methods: 
• Vote by ballot, roll call, counted vote
• Choose method of nominations
• Open or close nominates or the polls

Motions to Delay Action: 
• Refer to a committee
• Postpone to a definite time
• Recess
• Adjourn
• Postpone indefinitely
• Lay on the table

Motions to Vary the Procedures: 
• Suspend the rules
• Divide the question
• Request to withdraw a motion
• Request relief from duty – or resign

Motions to Re-examine: 
• Reconsider
• Rescind/Amend something previously

adopted
• Take from the table
• Discharge a committee

TABLE OF RULES RELATING TO MOTIONS: 
Motion Debate? Amend? Vote 

Adjourn No No Majority
Amend Yes Yes Majority
Amend Something Previously 
Adopted 

Yes Yes (a) Majority with notice; or (b) 2/3;
or (c) Majority of entire
membership

Appeal Normally No Majority in negative required to 
reverse chair’s decision 

Commit Yes Yes Majority
Debate, Close (Previous 
Question) 

No No 2/3

Debate, Limit or Extend 
Limits of 

No Yes 2/3

Main Motion Yes Yes Majority 
Postpone Yes Yes Majority
Previous Question No No 2/3 
Recess No Yes Majority
Reconsider If motion to be   

reconsidered debatable 
No Majority 

Rescind Yes Yes (a) Majority with notice; or (b) 2/3;
or (c) Majority of entire
membership

Refer (Commit) Yes Yes Majority 
Suspend the Rules (of Order) No No 2/3 
Suspend the Rules (standing  
or convention standing rules) 

No No Majority

Voting, motions relating to No Yes Majority 
T:\FY19\900 Operations\900 Direct Operations-Maint\Board\How to Make a Motion.docx3



 

2025 COMPASS BOARD MEETING DATES 

COMPASS BOARD 
MEETING DATE/TIME 

LOCATION KEY 
ITEMS 

April 21, 2025 
1:30 pm – 3:30 pm 

COMPASS  
First Floor Boardroom 

700 NE 2nd Street 
Meridian, Idaho 

• Approve Extension Delivery Deadlines for Local Federal-
Aid Projects

• Accept 2025 Population Estimates
• Approve FY2026 General and Special Membership Dues

June 16, 2025 
1:30 pm – 3:30 pm 

COMPASS  
First Floor Boardroom 

700 NE 2nd Street 
Meridian, Idaho 

• Approve Priorities for the End-of-Year and Redistribution
Program

• Review Draft FY2026-2032 Regional Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP)

August 18, 2025 
1:30 pm – 3:30 pm 

COMPASS  
First Floor Boardroom 

700 NE 2nd Street 
Meridian, Idaho 

• Approve COMPASS Workgroup Charters
• Approve the FY2027-2033 COMPASS Application Guide
• Approve the FY2026 Unified Planning Work Program and

Budget (UPWP)
• Approve FY2026 Communities in Motion Implementation

Grants and Project Development Program Projects
• Approve the FY2026-2032 Regional Transportation

Improvement Program (TIP)
• Approve 2026 Idaho and Federal Legislative Session

Position Statements
• Accept Alternatives Analysis Methodology and Findings

for the High-Capacity Transit (Let’s Ride Treasure Valley)
PEL Study

October 20, 2025 
1:30 pm – 3:30 pm 

COMPASS  
First Floor Boardroom 

700 NE 2nd Street 
Meridian, Idaho 

• Establish 2026 COMPASS Board and Executive Committee
Dates and Location; provide 30 Day Notice of Annual
Meeting

• Approve the FY2026 COMPASS Resource Development
Plan

December 15, 2025 
Holiday Luncheon 

12:00 pm 

Annual Meeting 
1:30 pm – 3:30 pm 
In person only, no 

remote option 

Nampa Civic Center 
311 3rd Street South 

Nampa, Idaho 

• Approve Revision 1 of the FY2026 Unified Planning Work
Program and Budget (UPWP)

• Confirm 2026 Board Officer Slate

T:\FY25\900 OPERATIONS\BOARD\2025 BOARD PACKETS\4 COVER 4 COMPASS BOARD MEETING DATES.DOCX 

4



COMPASS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FEBRUARY 24, 2025 – 1:30 PM 

COMPASS – 1ST FLOOR BOARD ROOM 
700 NE 2ND STREET 
MERIDIAN, IDAHO 

ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL 

Facebook Live Streaming - https://www.facebook.com/COMPASSIdaho 
(Subject to availability and functionality of connection.) 

Board members can participate in the meeting in person or via Zoom conference call. 
Please RSVP to Teri Gregory at tgregory@compassidaho.org or 208-475-2225. 

**AGENDA** 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL (1:30)

II. OPEN DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS

III. CONSENT AGENDA
Page 7 A.* Approve January 13, 2025, COMPASS Board of Directors Meeting 

Minutes 
Page 10 B.* Receive Approved December 5, 2024, December 10, 2024, and January 

14, 2025, Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
Page 18 C.* Receive Approved December 12, 2024, Finance Committee Meeting 

Minutes 
Page 20 D.* Confirm Finance Committee Membership 
Page 21 E.* Ratify Resolution 06-2025 Amending Revision 2 of the FY2025 Unified 

Planning Work Program and Budget 
Page 
46 

F.* Ratify Resolution 07-2025 Amending the FY2025-2031 Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

IV. SPECIAL ITEMS

1:35 
Page 54 

A.* Introduction to COMPASS Amy Luft 

Amy Luft will provide a brief introduction to COMPASS’ 
work products and Board calendar. 

1:50 B. Status Report – Finance Committee Mary May 
The Finance Committee Chair will provide a status report
on the January 24, 2025, special Finance Committee
meeting.

5

https://www.facebook.com/COMPASSIdaho
mailto:tgregory@compassidaho.org


1:55 
Page 55 

C.* Status Report – Funding Study Amy Luft 

Amy Luft will present an overview of COMPASS’ 
transportation funding study. 

V. ACTION ITEMS
2:15 
Page 57 

A.* Adopt the COMPASS Regional Safety Action Plan 
and FY2025 Safety Targets 

Hunter Mulhall/ 
Mark Heisinger, 

Kittelson 
Hunter Mulhall and Mark Heisinger, Kittelson, will seek 
COMPASS Board of Directors’ adoption of the COMPASS 
Regional Safety Action Plan and FY2025 safety targets. 

VI INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

2:35 A. Status Report - State Legislative Issues Amy Luft 
Amy Luft will provide an overview of Idaho Legislative
action to date, relating to COMPASS’ adopted position
statements.

2:50 
Page 61 

B.* Review Results of the 2024 Change in Motion 
Scorecard 

Hunter Mulhall 

Hunter Mulhall will review the results of the 2024 
Change in Motion scorecard and discuss next steps. 

3:05 
Page 62 

C.* Proposed Changes to COMPASS By-laws Meg Sonnen 

Meg Sonnen will present proposed changes to the 
COMPASS By-laws. 

3:15 
Page 79 

D.* Review an Upcoming Communities in Motion 2055 
Public Survey 

Austin Miller 

Austin Miller will demonstrate an upcoming Communities 
in Motion 2055 public survey. 

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY)

Page 85 A.* Staff Activity Reports 
Page 89 B.* Status Report – Current Air Quality Data 
Page 95 C.* Status Report – Regional Transportation Advisory Committee 

Attendance 
Page 96 D.* Administrative Modifications 

VIII. OTHER

Next Meeting: April 21, 2025

IX. ADJOURNMENT (3:25)
*Enclosures.  Times are approximate.  Agenda is subject to change.

Those needing assistance with COMPASS events or materials, or needing materials in alternate formats, please call 208-475-2229 with 48 hours 
advance notice. Si necesita asestencia con una junta de COMPASS, o necesita un documento en otro formato, por favor llame al 208-475-2229 con 48 
horas de anticipación. 

T:\FY25\900 Operations\Board\2025 Board Packets\February 2025\02242025 Agenda.docx

6



COMPASS BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 
SPECIAL MEETING 
JANUARY 13, 2025 

COMPASS, 1ST FLOOR BOARD ROOM 
700 NE 2ND STREET, MERIDIAN, ID 

ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL 

**DRAFT MINUTES** 

ATTENDEES: 
Rod Beck, Commissioner, Ada County, Chair Elect, in person 
Jason Brinkman, Idaho Transportation Department – District 3, in person 
Zach Brooks, Commissioner, Canyon County, in person 
Zach Piepmeyer for John Brunelle, Capital City Development Corporation, via 

ZOOM 
Trevor Chadwick, Mayor, City of Star, Immediate Past Chair, in person 
Elaine Clegg, Valley Regional Transit, in person 
Kathy Corless, Councilmember, City of Boise, via ZOOM 
Ryan Davidson, Commissioner, Ada County, via ZOOM 
John Evans, Mayor, City of Garden City, in person 
Jay Gibbons, Commissioner, Highway District No. 4, Chair, in person 
Miranda Gold, Commissioner, Ada County Highway District, in person 
Brad Holton, Commissioner, Canyon County, via ZOOM 
Jackie Hutchison, Mayor, City of Middleton, via ZOOM 
Debbie Kling, Mayor, City of Nampa, in person 
David Luft, Department of Environmental Quality, via ZOOM 
Mary May, Councilmember, City of Eagle, Secretary/Treasurer, in person 
Robb McDonald, City of Caldwell, via ZOOM 
Dave McKinney, Commissioner, Ada County Highway District, in person 
Lauren McLean, Mayor, City of Boise, via ZOOM 
Colin Nash, Councilmember, City of Boise, via ZOOM 
Patricia Nilsson, Commissioner, Ada County Highway District, in person 
Tom Points, City of Nampa, via ZOOM 
David Porterfield, Mayor, City of Notus, via ZOOM 
Dave Reinhart, West Ada School District, in person 
Charlie Rountree, City of Meridian, in person 
Robert Simison, Mayor, City of Meridian, in person 
Joe Stear, Mayor, City of Kuna, in person 
Matt Stoll, Executive Director, Community Planning Association, Ex officio, in 

person 
Jarom Wagoner, Mayor, City of Caldwell, Vice Chair, via ZOOM 
Nikole Zogg, Southwest District Health, Ex officio, via ZOOM 

7



MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Drew Alexander, Boise State University 
Bob Callahan, Commissioner, Boise County 
Tom Dayley, Commissioner, Ada County 
Cory Dickard, Mayor, City of Melba 
Dan Hyer, Councilmember, City of Greenleaf 
Chelsie Johnson, City of Wilder 
Brett Laird, City of Parma 
John Laraway, Councilmember, City of Kuna 
Lindy Lindstrom, Commissioner, Boise County 
Cody Lund, Greater Boise Auditorium District, Ex officio 
Jamie Neill, Governor’s Office, Ex officio 
John Overton, Councilmember, City of Meridian 
Brad Pike, Mayor, City of Eagle 
Victor Rodriguez, Councilmember, City of Nampa 
Clay Tucker, Commissioner, Boise County 
Leslie Van Beek, Commissioner, Canyon County 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Mark Christiansen, Councilmember, City of Middleton, in person 
Teri Gregory, Community Planning Association, in person 
Amy Luft, Community Planning Association, in person 
Craig Raborn, in person 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Jay Gibbons called the meeting to order at 1:31 pm. 

OPEN DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Chair Jay Gibbons introduced Craig Raborn. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve December 16, 2024, COMPASS Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

Trevor Chadwick moved and Charlie Rountree seconded approval of the Consent 
Agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously. 

8



ACTION ITEMS 

A. Executive Session – Personnel Matter, Idaho Code [74-206 (a)]

Trevor Chadwick moved and John Evans seconded to move into Executive Session 
pursuant to Idaho Code [74-206 (a)(b)] at 1:39 p.m. 

Matt Stoll called roll. The following COMPASS Board of Directors members were 
present and voted in the affirmative: Rod Beck, Jason Brinkman, Zach Brooks, Zach 
Piepmeyer for John Brunelle, Trevor Chadwick, Elaine Clegg, Kathy Corless, Ryan 
Davidson, John Evans, Jay Gibbons, Miranda Gold, Brad Holton, Jackie Hutchison, 
Debbie Kling, David Luft, Mary May, Robb McDonald, Dave McKinney, Lauren McLean, 
Colin Nash, Patricia Nilsson, Tom Points, David Porterfield, Dave Reinhart, Charlie 
Rountree, Robert Simison, Joe Stear, and Jarom Wagoner. 

The Board of Directors convened back into session at 2:33 p.m. 

B. Consider New Executive Director Appointment

After discussion, Mary May moved and Rod Beck seconded to approve the hiring of Craig 
Raborn as the new COMPASS Executive Director effective February 17, 2025, and to 
also approve Matt Stoll to work remotely from February 17-28, 2025. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Chair Jay Gibbons adjourned the meeting at 2:37 p.m. 

Approved this 24th day of February 2025. 

By: 
Jay Gibbons, Chair 
Community Planning Association of 
Southwest Idaho 

Attest: 

By: 
 Craig Raborn, Executive Director 
  Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho 

T:\FY25\900 Operations\Board\2025 Minutes\Unsigned\01132025 Special meeting minutes.docx 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM III-D 
February 24, 2025 

Finance Committee 

The purpose of the Finance Committee is to provide guidance to management and to 
establish reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding internal policies, 
procedures, and controls for the sound operation of COMPASS.  

The committee is composed of seven COMPASS Board members: the COMPASS Board 
Secretary-Treasurer, three members from Ada County and three members from Canyon 
County. The terms of office for committee members are two-year staggered terms, 
except for the Secretary-Treasurer whose term is one year. There is no limit to the 
number of terms a member may serve. Terms are numbered except for the Secretary-
Treasurer as odd-year/even-year terms. 

Vacancies on the committee are filled by the Board Chair and presented annually to the 
COMPASS Board for confirmation at the first meeting following the annual meeting of the 
Board. In the event that a duly appointed committee member is unable to attend a 
meeting of the committee, that member may arrange for an alternate to participate in 
committee deliberations on his/her behalf. 

Name  Member Agency Term 
Mary May City of Eagle One year term ending 1/2026 

   Ada County 
Trevor Chadwick City of Star Even (expires 1/2026) 
John Overton City of Meridian Odd (expires 1/2027) 
Rod Beck Ada County Even (expires 1/2026) 

   Canyon County 
Zach Brooks Canyon County Odd (expires 1/2027) 
Jay Gibbons Highway District 4 Even (expires 1/2026) 
Victor Rodriguez City of Nampa Odd (expires 1/2027) 

MS:tg  T:\FY24\900 Operations\Finance\2025 Finance Committee Members.docx

20



COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM III-E 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic:  Revision 2 of the FY2025 Unified Planning Work Program and Budget 

Request/Recommendation:  
Ratify the adoption of Resolution 06-2025, approving Revision 2 of the FY2025 Unified Planning 
Work Program and Budget (UPWP).  

Background/Summary:  
Federal metropolitan planning rules require that COMPASS produce a UPWP, which is periodically 
amended to accommodate changes in revenues, expenses, staffing, and scope. These 
amendments are usually accomplished through a resolution with subsequent distribution of the 
approved resolution and documents to the appropriate funding agencies.  

The Finance Committee recommended approval of Revision 2 of the FY2025 UPWP at its January 
24, 2025, meeting. 

The Executive Committee adopted Resolution 06-2025 at their February 4, 2025, meeting. 

The following revisions to revenues were made in Revision 2 of the FY2025 UPWP: 
• Add $7,665 for the pro-rated dues of new general member Boise County. Boise County

membership was approved by the COMPASS Board of Directors at the December 16,
2024, meeting, with an effective date of December 1, 2024.

• Decrease the draw from fund balance by $2,787 to balance the budget.

The following revisions to expenses were made in Revision 2 of the FY2025 UPWP: 
• Increase salary expense by $29,854 to cover one-time elements of the new Executive

Director’s compensation package, cover overlap between prior Executive Director and new
Executive Director, and account for staff promotion.

• Increase benefit costs by $34,074 for additional health insurance costs and the payroll tax
and PERSI costs related to the increase in salary expense.

• Decrease the amount budgeted for the government affairs consultant by $75,000. Bids
came in lower than the budgeted amount.

• Increase the amount budgeted for implementation of Transportation Improvement
Program (TIP) Manager software by $31,000. COMPASS seeks to implement TIP Manager
software in conjunction with the Idaho Transportation Department’s (ITD) software
implementation to gain efficiency in developing and managing the TIP. The budgeted
dollar amount is a ceiling, and the actual cost may be less dependent on how many Idaho
metropolitan planning organizations participate with ITD.

• Add an expense item of $15,950 to cover the write off of orthophotography billing and
revenue that was recorded in FY2024.  The member agency withdrew from the project
after the FY2024 audit was completed, so the write off had to be recorded in FY2025.

21



Implication (policy and/or financial): 
Without ratification of the adoption of Revision 2 of the FY2025 UPWP, the agency cannot make 
full use of available revenues. 

More Information: 
1) Attachments
2) For detailed information contact: Meg Sonnen, at 208-475-2228 or

msonnen@compassidaho.org.

MS:tg  T:\FY25\900 Operations\Board\2025 Board Packets\February 2025\III E  Rev2 FY25 UPWP Memo.docx 

22

mailto:msonnen@compassidaho.org


23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM III-F 
February 24, 2025 

Topic:  Amendment to the FY2025-2031 Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) 

Request/Recommendation:  
COMPASS staff seek COMPASS Board of Directors’ ratification of Resolution 07-2025 (Attachment 
1) modifying the FY2025-2031 TIP at the request of Valley Regional Transit and the Idaho
Transportation Department. The Regional Transportation Advisory Committee recommended
adoption on January 22, 2025, and the COMPASS Executive Committee adopted the resolution on
February 4, 2025.

Background/Summary 
Action is needed from the COMPASS Board of Directors when a project increases by more than 
30% and is more than $1 million or when a project increases by more than $5 million.  

• Valley Regional Transit requested to increase their rolling stock, infrastructure, and
technology project in FY2025, carrying over funds from FY2024 that were not obligated
and increasing the amount to match the needs in VRT’s budget. The increase is $2,076,750,
or 84.87%.

• The Idaho Transportation Department requested to increase its Interstate 84 widening
project between the Centennial Interchange and the Franklin Road Interchange in
the City of Caldwell. During review, staff determined that previous expenditures did not
match the actual obligations that occurred in FY2024; therefore, adjustments are also
proposed to match the actual obligations. The overall increase is $5,500,470, or 4.67%. The
increase is based on inflationary costs.

A public comment period was held January 6, 2025, through January 16, 2025, to address the 
proposed amendment to the FY2025-2031 TIP. A total of ten individuals commented during the 
public comment period. Verbatim comments are provided in Attachment 2. Staff do not 
recommend changes to the amendment based on the public comments received.  

Implication (policy and/or financial): 
The amendment to the TIP ensures that the document continues to meet federal fiscal constraint 
requirements and enables work to continue on these projects.  

More Information: 
1) Attachment 1: Resolution 07-2025
2) Attachment 2: Verbatim Public Comments
3) For detailed information contact: Toni Tisdale, Resource Development Team Lead, at

208/475-2238 or ttisdale@compassidaho.org.

TT:tg  T:\FY25\600 Projects\685 TIP\Memos\250224mmoBDamend3.docx 

46

mailto:ttisdale@compassidaho.org


47



48



49



1 

 Public Comments Received (Verbatim)

Amendment #3 to the FY2025-2031 Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) 

Public Comment Period: January 6 – January 16, 2025 
Total number of comments received by COMPASS: 10 

Topic: 
The proposed amendment would adjust the cost of two projects to meet current funding needs: one to 

accommodate for Valley Regional Transit’s 2025 budget needs and one to increase the funding for the I-84, 
Centennial Interchange to Franklin Interchange project in Caldwell. 

Comment 
(The comments below are verbatim, as submitted by the 

commenter. As such, typographical errors have not been corrected.) 
Staff Response 

Name, Zip 
Code, 

Affiliation 
I’m grateful to see much needed funding directed to Valley Regional 
Transit.  

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board 
of Directors. 

NA 

The freeways are a literal deathtrap. Gas prices fluctuate, and 
increasingly I find myself preferring not to drive. Ideally a train 
system would be the way to go, but more busses would be a good 
move 

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board 
of Directors. 

NA 

Hello, Yes, please increase the budget to improve VRT budget needs. 
Idaho desperately needs better transportation options! Thank you 

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board 
of Directors. 

Stephanie 
Wicks 

I do not support increased funding for VRT I do support increased 
funding for the Roadwork 

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation 
Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors. 

Mac 
McOmber 

VRT has been woefully under funded. This increase is a step in the 
right direction. Thank you 

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board 
of Directors. 

NA 

I support the budget increase to accommodate the VRT's 2025  
budget needs and also to increase funding for the I-84 Centennial 
Interchange to Franklin Interchange project in Caldwell. It is 
important to address budget concerns as early as possible to avoid 
last minute requests for funds that are needed for critical projects 
like the two referenced above. Thank you for the opportunity to 
comment on funding for these two projects! 

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation 
Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors. 

Pike Teinert 

Attachment 2 

50



2 

Comment 
(The comments below are verbatim, as submitted by the 

commenter. As such, typographical errors have not been corrected.) 
Staff Response 

Name, Zip 
Code, 

Affiliation 
These comments are in regard to: "FY2025-2031 Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)" What is the total cost 
per passenger mile for "Valley Region Transit" including all costs 
including infrastructure, employees, equipment, land, buildings, 
buses, maintenance etc.. . Would it be more cost effective and 
provide better service to simply pay for passengers to make use of 
ride share services? I'm of the opinion that the entire program 
should be eliminated as it is more expensive and provides worse 
overall service to available alternatives and at the same time 
actually makes traffic congestion worse. Regards 

Response to Valley Regional Transit’s answer (see column to the 
right) to the question above: 

Based even on the $3.73 per mile estimate, which excludes capital 
costs, this seems several times more expensive on average than just 
subsidising ride share services while at the same time being 
significantly less efficient and convenient.  

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation 
Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors. 

Response from Valley Regional Transit: 
VRT regularly reports on operating costs (i.e., 
employees, fuel, preventative maintenance, energy 
etc.) per passenger mile because those are recurring 
annual costs. VRT does not report on capital costs 
(i.e., buses, buildings, bus stops etc.) per passenger 
mile because those are expenses that provide benefit 
over many years of service and would need to be 
compared to the passenger miles over that same time 
frame. 

Below are the available operating costs per passenger 
mile that VRT reported to the National Transit 
Database in 2023. These costs vary substantially for 
different kinds of service. This is largely because of 
the varying productivity of the different service types. 

Fixed Route: $3.73 cost per passenger mile 
Demand Response: $11.55 cost per passenger mile 

VRT also supports various specialized transportation 
services such as Beyond Access which provides shared 
rides to older adults and persons with disabilities, 
Meridian Medical Transportation which provides 
Meridian residents weekday transportation to medical 
appointments, Meridian Veterans Shuttle which 
provides service to veterans between Meridian and the 
Veterans hospital in Boise, Rides2Wellness which 
provides medical transportation for patients of St. 
Luke’s, St. Alphonsus and designated clinics, and the 
Volunteer Driver Program which provides 
transportation to essential services like medical 
facilities, social services, nutrition etc. Each of these 
services would have different costs per passenger 
mile. 

Benjamin 
Knigge 

51



3 
 

Comment 
(The comments below are verbatim, as submitted by the 

commenter. As such, typographical errors have not been corrected.) 
Staff Response 

Name, Zip 
Code, 

Affiliation 
There are certainly some instances where it would be 
more cost effective to leverage shared ride services. 
Valley Regional Transit does this with the VRT Lyft 
Pass Program and the VRT Late Night program. There 
are many other cases where public transit services 
(particularly fixed route services) are either more cost 
effective or provide a higher level of service than 
shared ride services. These include frequent corridors 
such as State St, Fairview, and Vista, where riders 
don’t need to request a ride for their recurring trips as 
they would for shared ride services. This also applies 
to high demand corridors such as Overland, and 
Emerald where the number of people using the service 
could not be matched by shared ride services. This is 
especially the case when you have persons with 
disability or youth under 18 who are prohibited from 
taking advantage of shared ride services. 
  
Finally, transit services not only improve congestion 
currently, but they are the only motorized mode of 
transportation that has the capacity to reduce/limit 
congestion even as transportation demand increases. 
Also, many of the capital investments that are 
necessary for public transportation, such as safe, 
accessible sidewalks, are of benefit to the non-riding 
public as well. Valley Regional Transit frequently 
partners with local jurisdictions to improve their non-
motorized infrastructure. The benefits of these 
investments are felt by transit riders and non-riders 
alike. 

52



4 
 

Comment 
(The comments below are verbatim, as submitted by the 

commenter. As such, typographical errors have not been corrected.) 
Staff Response 

Name, Zip 
Code, 

Affiliation 
Hi, The two projects proposed in Amendment #3 (FY2025-2031) are 
important.  I once was a VRT passenger (mostly between Nampa 
and BSU, and I really appreciated - even enjoyed - that service.  I 
also have used VRT between Caldwell (where I live) and 
Nampa.  Public transportation is a vital part of any community's 
infrastructure and, in my opinion, an important contributor to 
democracy and social stability. The I-84 interchange project is also 
vitally important in order to manage the dramatic rise in traffic in 
Caldwell and traffic on I-84 as a whole.  Alternate routes cannot 
manage the traffic that flows through this part of the city. Thank 
you,  

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation 
Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors. 

Karen H. 
Brown 

 

While road improvement projects are important, I feel like the 
greatest use of funds would be to invest in programs and projects 
that mitigate car traffic on our roadways.  Sidewalks and a bike lane 
on Lonestar, which houses a major middle school would be 
wonderful. Instead of funding to go towards roadways, invest that 
money in reliable public transit whether that be a more robust bus 
network or a metro line similar to Salt Lake City. Thank you for your 
time.  

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit, the City of Nampa, the 
Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS 
Board of Directors. 

83651 

I think it's great that VRT is getting more funding. They're a vital 
resource for the community and I'd love to see them expand both 
the area they cover and their hours of operation. I clicked the link to 
see the full project proposal and there wasnt much there. I would 
love to learn more about what VRT intends to do with the extra 
funds 

Thank you for your comments; they will be shared 
with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board 
of Directors. 

NA 

 

53



COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM IV-A 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic: Introduction to COMPASS and the COMPASS Board of Directors 

Request/Recommendation: 
This is an information item only. 

Summary:  
The COMPASS Board of Directors is COMPASS’ governing body, and as such guides COMPASS 
efforts and work products on regional transportation, growth, funding, and related policy issues. 
Over the course of a year, the Board reviews and acts on a variety of issues, including accepting 
annual population estimates, approving federal funding for transportation projects, providing 
policy direction on multiple topics guiding the development of the region’s long-range 
transportation plan, and approving COMPASS’ annual budget, the Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP).  

A subset of COMPASS Board members serve on COMPASS’ two policy committees: the Executive 
and Finance Committees. COMPASS’ Regional Transportation Advisory Committee (RTAC), 
comprised primarily of member agency staff, serves as a conduit of information between 
COMPASS staff and COMPASS Board members and develops, reviews, and recommends most 
actions that come before the COMPASS Board. 

Multiple resources are available to assist Board members in preparing for upcoming meetings 
and/or reviewing the actions from previous meetings, including: 

• Agendas, packets, meeting minutes, and supplementary information
- Online (see below); meeting packet links are sent via email 10 days prior to each meeting

and a link to PowerPoint slides is sent the Friday before each meeting
- Each packet includes a “Board Agenda Worksheet” listing the topics planned for upcoming

meetings; let COMPASS staff know if there are topics you would like to see added
• “Keeping Up with COMPASS” newsletter

- Outlines the actions of the Board of Directors and all COMPASS committees and
workgroups to assist members in tracking the progress of actions as they move through
the COMPASS process

- Emailed to all Board members monthly; also posted online (see below)

In the meeting, COMPASS staff will provide a brief introduction to COMPASS and the Board of 
Directors’ role, then outline what Board members can expect to discuss and act on in the coming 
year.  

More Information: 
1) Board of Directors agendas, packets, and minutes: https://compassidaho.org/board-meeting-

schedules-packets-and-minutes/
2) Keeping Up with COMPASS newsletter: https://compassidaho.org/newsletters/
3) For detailed information contact: Amy Luft, Communication Team Lead (aluft@compassidaho.org)

AL:tg T:\FY25\600 Projects\653 Communication\COMPASS 101\Bd_RTAC_Intro_to_COMPASS\Bd_MMO_COMPASSIntro.docx 

54

https://compassidaho.org/board-meeting-schedules-packets-and-minutes/
https://compassidaho.org/board-meeting-schedules-packets-and-minutes/
https://compassidaho.org/newsletters/
mailto:aluft@compassidaho.org


COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM IV-C 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic:  COMPASS 50-State Transportation Funding Study 

Request/Recommendation: 
This is an information item only. 

Background/Summary:  
In 2022, COMPASS calculated a $193 million annual shortfall in transportation funding for Ada and 
Canyon Counties to the year 2050. The shortfall is comprised of unfunded needs across all types of 
transportation infrastructure. Many factors contribute to this shortfall, including a static fuel tax, fuel-
efficient vehicles, and inflation.  

In fall 2023, COMPASS, with consultant WSP, initiated a study to better understand how other state 
and local governments are funding their transportation systems to inform local and statewide funding 
policy discussions. The study, completed in fall 2024 and posted on the COMPASS website (see “More 
Information,” below), focused on four main topic areas:  

• Local transportation funding mechanisms
• Public transportation funding mechanisms
• Suballocation of federal Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) funding to local jurisdictions
• Adoption of Road Usage Charges (RUC) to offset decreasing fuel taxes due to high fuel-efficient

vehicles

Key takeaways from each of these topic areas are described below and will be shared in more detail 
in the meeting. 

Local Transportation Funding 
• Forty-two states, including Idaho, allow the use of local property tax to fund local transportation

infrastructure.
• Vehicle registration fees and impact fees are the two most common local fees used to fund

transportation.
• Of 11 local taxes and fees evaluated, three were determined to be sufficient on their own to

address the Treasure Valley’s $193 million annual shortfall: local option sales tax, property tax,
and income tax.

Public Transportation Funding 
• Idaho and West Virginia are the only states that do not allow local revenue generating options for

public transportation nor provide meaningful state funding.
• National trends reflect a growing commitment to improving public transportation infrastructure

and services. Several states have recently enacted significant legislative measures and/or
allocated substantial funds to enhance transit systems.

• Local option sales tax and property tax are the most promising revenue streams for dedicated,
long-term funding.

• Location-specific funding, such as through special assessment districts, could augment these taxes
for discrete, location-specific infrastructure, such as bus stops.

55



Suballocation of Federal Funds 
• More than 83% of states suballocate 55% or more of their STBG funding to local jurisdictions;

Idaho suballocates about 51%.
• More than 81% of states use the recommended federal computational tables to allocate federal

funds to local jurisdictions; Idaho does not.
• States are more likely to suballocate money to local jurisdictions in larger regions, and more likely

to spend the funding on state projects that benefit the region in smaller regions.

Road Usage Charges 
• Three states have active RUC programs: Oregon, Utah, and Virginia. Many other states have

ongoing or completed pilot projects.
• In Utah and Virginia, the programs serve as alternatives to flat fees imposed on electric and other

alternative fueled vehicles. Vehicle owners can choose between the flat fee or the RUC. If the RUC
is selected, the total cost to the vehicle owner cannot exceed the flat fee rate.

• In Oregon, the program is a voluntary alternative to fuel taxes where participants receive credit
for fuel taxes paid at the pump.

• Barriers include privacy concerns, compliance, and cost. Solutions to address these barriers
include providing a variety of technology options and using private vendors.

More Information: 
1) For detailed information contact: Amy Luft, Communication Team Lead, at 208/475-2229 or

aluft@compassidaho.org.
2) COMPASS 50-State Funding Study Final Report: https://compassidaho.org/wp-

content/uploads/Bd_COMPASS-Funding-Study-Comprehensive-Report-Final_Nov2024.pdf

AL:tg  T:\FY25\700 Services\760 Gov Affairs\Funding Study\Bd_MMO_FundStudy_Feb25.docx

56

mailto:aluft@compassidaho.org
https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/Bd_COMPASS-Funding-Study-Comprehensive-Report-Final_Nov2024.pdf
https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/Bd_COMPASS-Funding-Study-Comprehensive-Report-Final_Nov2024.pdf


BOARD AGENDA ITEM V-A 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic: COMPASS Regional Safety Action Plan and FY2025 Safety Targets 

Request/Recommendation:  
COMPASS staff seeks COMPASS Board of Directors’ adoption of Resolution 08-2025 (attached), 
the Regional Safety Action Plan, and the FY2025 safety performance targets per 
recommendation of the Regional Transportation Advisory Committee. 

Background/Summary: 
The Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) program was developed as part of the 2021 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act. The program dedicated $5 billion from 2022-2026 to 
fund transportation safety planning and projects. The SS4A program is broken into two types of 
monetary awards: planning and implementation. The first year of the program was focused 
heavily on awarding funds to produce transportation safety plans. A thorough plan is required to 
access the implementation awards. COMPASS, with the support of all its member agencies, 
applied for and was awarded $392,000 (80% of total project cost) in 2023 to complete a 
regional safety action plan. 

Over the last 14 months, COMPASS, with support from Kittelson and Associates, High Street 
Consulting, Atlas, and a workgroup of 40 staff from partner agencies completed the Regional 
Safety Action Plan (see link below). 

The plan includes the following items: 
• Vision, goals, targets, and performance measures that support the elimination of serious

and fatal injury crashes.
• Review of current transportation safety practices in the region.
• Extensive evaluation of serious and fatal crashes from 2018-2022 in the region.
• A high injury network developed using crash history in conjunction with identified risk

factors (see map, linked below).
• Results of public engagement opportunities.
• A toolkit of proven transportation safety measures to address regional crash trends.
• Strategies and actions necessary to implement the vision and goals of the plan.
• Concepts for projects that use the tools and practices outlined in the plan and could be

pursued through the SS4A program or other federal grant opportunities.

The Regional Safety Action Plan also includes a resolution committing COMPASS and its regional 
partners to the vision, goals, and target to achieve a 50% reduction in serious and fatal injury 
crashes by 2055. This component of the plan fulfills one of several requirements necessary to 
pursue implementation grants through the SS4A program. 

Additionally, the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) and COMPASS are required by federal 
law to coordinate on setting safety performance targets each year for the state and the region. 
Historically, COMPASS has elected to support ITD’s statewide safety targets but has now 
established its own regional targets as part of the Regional Safety Action Plan. COMPASS staff 

57



recommend supporting ITD’s statewide FY2025 targets for fatality and serious injury rates as in 
past years but changing to the newly established regional targets for the numbers of serious and 
fatal injuries to align with the Regional Safety Action Plan. 

The proposed targets for FY2025 are listed below: 

Regional Targets 
• 5-year average number of fatalities: less than 47
• 5-year average number of serious injuries: less than 394
• 5-year average number of non-motorized fatalities and serious injuries: less than 52

Statewide Targets
• 5-year fatality rate per 100 million vehicle miles of travel (VMT): less than 1.33
• 5-year serious injury rate per 100 million VMT: less than 6.82

Implication (policy and/or financial): 
Adoption of Resolution 08-2025 approving the Regional Safety Action Plan enables COMPASS 
and its member agencies to pursue SS4A implementation federal grant opportunities. 

The strategies, actions, and practices outlined in the plan will guide/inform future tasks for 
COMPASS staff/workgroups, COMPASS’ Unified Planning Work Program and Budget, performance 
measures, and project scoring in the Transportation Improvement Program and Communities in 
Motion 2055. 

If the state does not meet or make significant progress toward the FY2025 statewide targets, 
ITD will lose flexibility to transfer Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds to other 
federal aid programs and must submit an HSIP implementation plan. There are no penalties for 
metropolitan planning organizations (e.g., COMPASS) if they fail to meet safety targets. 

More Information: 
1) Attachment: Resolution 08-2025
2) Regional Safety Action Plan: https://compassidaho.org/wp-

content/uploads/BoardSupp_02242025_RSAPFinal.pdf
3) High Injury Network Map:

https://compassidaho.maps.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/aa2067339363456a9fcec94b0d
9875fd

4) For detailed information contact: Hunter Mulhall, Principal Planner, at
hmulhall@compassidaho.org

HM:tg  T:\FY23\600 Projects\661 CIM\Safe Streets Road 4 All\Presentations\boardmmo-SS4A-021825_adoption.docx 

58

https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/BoardSupp_02242025_RSAPFinal.pdf
https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/BoardSupp_02242025_RSAPFinal.pdf
https://compassidaho.maps.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/aa2067339363456a9fcec94b0d9875fd
https://compassidaho.maps.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/aa2067339363456a9fcec94b0d9875fd
mailto:hmulhall@compassidaho.org


Attachment 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-2025 

Regional commitment to eliminate fatalities and serious injuries on Ada County and 
Canyon County roadways through innovation, collaboration, education, and 
engagement. 

WHEREAS, the Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) has been 
designated by the Governor of Idaho as the metropolitan planning organization responsible for 
transportation planning in Ada and Canyon Counties; and  

WHEREAS, COMPASS was awarded a federal Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) planning 
grant to fund a Regional Safety Action Plan (RSAP) to identify measures for reducing fatal and 
serious crashes for all modes – vehicles, motorcycles, pedestrians, and bicyclists; and  

WHEREAS, to comply with the SS4A program requirements, the RSAP must include a public 
commitment to the eventual goal of zero roadway fatalities and serious injuries from a high 
ranking official and/or elected body in the jurisdiction, including a timeline/target for achieving 
that goal; and  

WHEREAS, progress toward the national safety goals is monitored as part of the Federal 
Highway Administration’s annual Safety Performance Measurement reporting process; and 

WHEREAS, the Vision for the Idaho Transportation Department’s Strategic Highway Safety Plan 
is “Continue to move toward zero deaths on all roadways in Idaho” and its goal is to reduce 
traffic deaths in Idaho to 230 or fewer by 2025; and  

WHEREAS, the likely timeframe from RSAP adoption to project programming, design, funding, 
and construction will exceed six (6) years in most cases; and  

WHEREAS, under the SS4A grant program, establishing multiple target dates to achieve zero 
fatal and serious injury crashes is allowable; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the COMPASS Board of Directors: Commits to 
elimination of fatalities and serious injuries on its roadways through innovation, collaboration, 
education, and engagement; and agrees to plan and program projects to achieve the interim 
target of a 50 percent reduction in fatal and serious-injury crashes by 2055. 

59



ADOPTED this 24th day of February 2025.

By: 
Jay Gibbons, Chair 
Community Planning Association  
of Southwest Idaho Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Craig Raborn, Executive Director 
Community Planning Association 
of Southwest Idaho  

T:\FY23\600 Projects\661 CIM\Safe Streets Road 4 All\Presentations\RSAP_Resolution xb-2025.docx 

60



BOARD AGENDA ITEM VI-B 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic: 2024 Change in Motion Scorecard 

Background/Summary: 
A key component of COMPASS’ performance reporting is a report illustrating regional progress 
on implementation of the long-range transportation plan. To this end, the Change in Motion 
Scorecard is compiled every other year to illustrate progress toward meeting the goals and 
targets established in Communities in Motion (CIM).  

The 2024 scorecard (linked below) evaluates over 40 performance measures representing the 4 
goals and 18 objectives of CIM 2050. The scorecard highlights a mix of results with 13 measures 
“on track” to meet targets, 7 making progress but not at a rate to meet targets, and 10 not 
making progress and not on track to meet regional targets. Five metrics have yet to be assigned 
targets; however, three of those five indicate positive improvements. Highlights of the 2024 
Change in Motion Scorecard will be presented at the Board meeting. 

COMPASS has been working with a subcommittee of the Regional Transportation Advisory 
Committee (RTAC) to develop recommendations to improve underperforming measures and 
improve the overall performance monitoring process. Staff will share those recommendations 
with the COMPASS Board at the meeting.  

Implication (policy and/or financial): 
The 2024 Change in Motion Scorecard highlights progress and illustrates areas where further 
work is needed to reach CIM 2050 goals. It is used to identify policy issues that need additional 
resources, funding, or planning efforts.  

More Information: 
1) 2024 Change in Motion Scorecard: https://compassidaho.org/wp-

content/uploads/BoardSupp_02242025_ChangeInMotionScorecard.pdf
2) For detailed information contact: Hunter Mulhall, Principal Planner, at

hmulhall@compassidaho.org

  T:\FY25\600 Projects\661 Long-Range Planning\Performance Management\boardmmo-ChangeinMotionScorecard-021824.docx 

61

https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/BoardSupp_02242025_ChangeInMotionScorecard.pdf
https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/BoardSupp_02242025_ChangeInMotionScorecard.pdf
mailto:hmulhall@compassidaho.org


COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM VI-C 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic:  Proposed revisions to COMPASS Bylaws 

Request/Recommendation: 
Information only. 

Background/Summary:  
At the December 16, 2024, meeting, the COMPASS Board of Directors approved Boise County for 
membership. With the addition of Boise County as a member, some items in the COMPASS bylaws 
should be clarified.  

Based on the guidance of counsel, the following revisions to the Bylaws are proposed: 

• Section 4.6 Intra-County Voting is updated to make clear that the determination of eligibility
for intra-county voting is at the discretion of the Chair; it is not a question subject to a vote by
the Board. Once the Chair has determined that an item is an intra-county voting item, the
eligible Board members vote on that item.

• Section 4.7 Metropolitan Planning Voting is added as a new section. This section describes the
process for voting on items related to the metropolitan planning process and mirrors the
process described in Section 4.6 for intra-county voting.

• Section 5.1 Officers of the Board is amended to make clear that any Voting Board Member is
eligible to serve as an officer, subject to the nomination and election process described in
Section 5.

Per Section 9.2 of the Bylaws, this presentation of proposed amendments serves as the required 
introduction of amendments at the meeting prior to the meeting when the Board will be asked to vote 
on the amendments. By this item, the Board is notified of the intent to amend the Bylaws. The 
Executive Committee will be asked to recommend the revisions at its March 11, 2025, meeting to the 
full Board. Revisions may then be voted on at the April 21, 2025, Board meeting.  

The Finance Committee has its own bylaws, which are provided as Attachment 2. In Section 2.1, the 
Finance Committee bylaws specify the members that are eligible for appointment to the Finance 
Committee. Under the Finance Committee bylaws as written, Boise County members are not eligible 
for appointment. No changes are proposed to the Finance Committee bylaws. 

More Information: 

1) Attachment 1: Proposed COMPASS Bylaws Revisions
2) Attachment 2: Finance Committee Bylaws
3) For detailed information, contact: Meg Sonnen, Director of Operations, at 208-475-2228 or

msonnen@compassidaho.org.
MS:tg  T:\FY25\900 Operations\Board\2025 Board Packets\February 2025\VI C 1 Bylaws Memo.docx

62



Bylaws - 1 

BYLAWS AS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF 
THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHWEST IDAHO 

Initially Adopted: March 1, 2000 
Amended: January 22, 2001 

Amended: June 18, 2001 
Amended: September 27, 2004 

Amended: August 17, 2009 
Amended: September 21, 2015 

Amended: October 21, 2024 
Amended: April 21, 2025 

Article 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

1.1 Board of Directors. The Board of Directors (“Board”) shall be appointed and 
serve as provided in that certain Third Restated And Amended Joint Powers Agreement and 
Articles of Reformation and Organization of the Community Planning Association of Southwest 
Idaho, a Nonprofit Association, as may be amended (the “JPA”). 

1.2 Term of Office. Each member of the Board entitled to vote (“Voting Board 
Member”) shall hold office until replaced or until the Voting Board Member’s earlier death, 
resignation or disqualification. All other members of the Board hold office as allowed under the 
JPA. 

Article 2 
BOARD MEETINGS 

2.1 Place of Meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be held at the principal office 
of COMPASS or at such other place as the Board may order or direct before the call of such 
meeting. The time and place of such meetings shall be stated in the notice or call for the meetings. 

2.2 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the third 
Monday of February, April, June, August, October and December of each year, if not a legal 
holiday, and if a legal holiday, then on the first Monday following which is not a legal holiday. All 
business, which the Board is authorized and empowered to take up at such a meeting, may be 
transacted without further or special notice. 

2.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called at any time by the Chair or 
Vice-Chair. Special meetings may also be called by the Chair upon written request by any five 
(5) or more Voting Board Members.

2.4 Notice or Call for Meetings. All members of the Board shall be notified of each 
regular or special meeting of the Board at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of each meeting. 
Notification shall include, at a minimum, the meeting location, meeting time and proposed agenda. 
Notification may be delivered via email, regular mail or hand delivery. Annually, at the last regular 
meeting of a calendar year, a schedule of regular meetings for the following year shall be adopted 
and distributed in a manner determined by the Board. 

63



Bylaws - 2 
 

 

2.5 Quorum. A quorum shall consist of a majority of the Voting Board Members. 
Voting Board Members participating in the meeting telephonically or via audio or audiovisual 
internet connection shall be considered present and are included in determination of quorum. 

2.6 Action by Majority Vote. Except as otherwise expressly required by these by- 
laws, the JPA or by applicable law, the vote of a majority of the Voting Board Members present 
at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board. Voting Board Members 
participating in the meeting telephonically or via audio or audiovisual internet connection shall be 
considered present. 

2.7 Presiding Officer. The Chair shall preside at all meetings. In the absence of the 
Chair, the Chair-Elect shall preside. In the absence of the Chair and the Chair-Elect the Vice 
Chair shall preside. In the absence of all these officers, the Board shall select a temporary Chair 
for the meeting. The Secretary/Treasurer shall act as secretary at all meetings of the Board, but 
in the Secretary/Treasurer’s absence, the presiding officer may appoint any person to act as 
secretary for that meeting. Should the Secretary/Treasurer be the presiding officer, as provided 
above, the Secretary/Treasurer may appoint any person to act in the capacity of Secretary for 
that meeting. 

2.8 Rules of Order. The rules contained in the current edition of Roberts Rules Newly 
Revised generally shall govern in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not 
inconsistent with these bylaws, the JPA, and any special order that may be adopted by the Board. 

Article 3 
AUTHORITY 

3.1 Responsibilities. The Board of Directors has the primary responsibilities listed 
below. The Board may take other actions not listed here as appropriate to govern COMPASS. 

3.1.1 Elect Officers; 

3.1.2 Approve addition of new members to COMPASS; 

3.1.3 Approve regional long range transportation plan and amendments to 
the regional long-range transportation plan; 

3.1.4 Approve Transportation Improvement Program and amendments to 
Transportation Improvement Program; 

3.1.5 Approve Unified Planning Work Program and Budget and revisions to 
Unified Planning Work Program and Budget; 

3.1.6 Hire and oversee Executive Director; 

3.1.7 Review and approve annual performance review of the Executive 
Director conducted by the Executive Committee, and approve salary 
adjustment or other compensation arrangement; 

64



Bylaws - 3 
 

 

3.1.8 Approve annual state and federal legislative positions; 

3.1.9 Approve strategic plan, as needed; 

3.1.10 Approve grant applications where COMPASS is grantor; 

3.1.11 Approve annual population estimates; 

3.1.12 Approve annual membership dues; 

3.1.13 Approve or select members of committees, task forces and work 
groups, as the case may be; 

3.1.14 Approve COMPASS integrated communications plan as needed, but 
not less than every three (3) years; 

3.1.15 Approve updates to Financial Policy, as needed; 

3.1.16 Approve updates to Personnel Policy, as needed; 

3.1.17 Review and approve Board policies, as needed; and 

3.1.18 Approve the annual development plan which identifies: a) grants and 
other funding sources for COMPASS; and b) resource development 
activities which will be pursued by COMPASS staff. 

Article 4 
VOTING 

4.1 Voting Board Member. Only Voting Board Members and, where applicable, 
Alternate Board Members, are entitled to cast a vote at any meeting of the Board. 

4.2 Authority to Vote. A Voting Board Member is entitled to vote on any matter which 
comes before the Board or before any committee, task force or work group of which the Voting 
Board Member is a duly appointed member, provided the Voting Board Member’s member agency 
is current in the payment of its membership dues and all other proper assessments. Similarly, an 
approved Alternate Board Member, as provided for in the JPA, shall have the authority to vote as 
a Voting Board Member on behalf of the members for whom he or she is serving, provided the 
Voting Board Member’s member is current in the payment of its dues and other proper 
assessments. 

4.3 Voting. All matters before the Board shall be disposed of by simple majority vote 
of all votes cast by Voting Board Members present at the meeting unless otherwise provided in 
these bylaws, applicable law, the JPA or any special order that may be adopted by the Board. 
Voting Board Members participating in the meeting telephonically or via audio or audiovisual 
internet connection shall be considered present. 

4.4 Votes per Voting Board Member. Three voting alternatives exist. Unless 
otherwise provided, Alternative “a” (one vote per Voting Board Member) shall be used. 

65



Bylaws - 4 
 

 

(a) One vote per Voting Board Member: Each Board Member casts one and 
only one vote. 

(b) Weighted Voting: Voting Board Members from each General and Special 
Purpose Member cast a number of votes equal to the member agency’s 
COMPASS membership dues as provided below. 

(c) Intra-County Voting: Only Voting Board Members from within one county 
cast a vote. 

4.5 Weighted Voting. Weighted voting may be used when all Voting Board Members 
from any General Member request weighted voting after a matter is properly before the Board 
and before the question is called or the vote is held. In the event weighted voting is requested: 

(a) Each General and Special Purpose Member represented at the Board 
meeting by one or more Voting Board Members shall be granted one vote 
for each dollar it contributes as its membership dues to COMPASS in the 
current fiscal year as provided in the most recently adopted COMPASS 
Unified Planning Work Program and Budget. 

(b) In the event more than one Voting Board Member is present for a General 
Member, the votes for that General Member shall be divided equally among 
the member’s Voting Board Members present at the time the vote is held. 

(c) The Secretary/Treasurer shall determine and announce, or cause to be 
determined and announced, the number of votes assigned to each Voting 
Board Member. The Chair shall read the number of votes assigned to each 
member agency before the vote. 

(d) A roll-call vote shall be held. 

4.6 Intra-County Voting. Intra-county voting may be used according to the provisions 
of this section when any matter properly before the Board pertains overwhelmingly within the 
borders of one county. Examples of such matters include, but are not limited to: 

(a) Setting transportation project priorities when all such projects are within the 
borders of one county; 

(b) Approving a Transportation Improvement Program when the program 
applies only within the borders of one county; 

(c) Approving a long rangelong-range transportation plan when the plan 
applies only within the borders of one county; 

(d) Approving an expenditure of funds when the funds are both generated and 
expended within the borders of one county; and 

66



Bylaws - 5 
 

 

(e) Adopting air or water quality recommendations or strategies for inclusion in 
official State Implementation Plans when the recommendations or 
strategies apply only within the borders of one county. 

The Chair may optionally determine, before distributing an agenda for any regular or 
special meeting of the Board, whether any item on the agenda is likely to qualify for intra-county 
voting and shall so designate on the agenda. In addition, any Voting Board Member may, at any 
meeting of the Board, request that the Chair consideration of intra-county voting for any action 
item on the agenda. 

In either case, the determination to use intra-county voting for any action item on the 
agenda is at the discretion of the Chair. Such determination must be made in a manner consistent 
with Idaho law. before such a matter may properly be placed before the Board, the Chair shall 
determine in a manner generally provided by Roberts Rules of Order whether to invoke intra-
county voting. In the event intra-county voting is used: 

(a) The Chair shall announce that intra-county voting shall be used to resolve 
the matter before the Board and designate which county’s Board Members 
may vote. 

(b) Only Voting Board Members present and representing General and Special 
Purpose Members in that county may cast a vote on the matter. 

(c) A simple majority of Voting Board Members present from that county is 
required to approve the matter before the Board. 

(d) Weighted voting within the county may be utilized as provided elsewhere 
in this section. 

4.7 Metropolitan Planning Voting. Metropolitan planning voting may be used 
according to the provisions of this section when any matter properly before the Board is related 
to the metropolitan planning process. Matters related to the metropolitan planning process are 
the Long-Range Transportation Plan and the Transportation Improvement Program. 

 The Chair may optionally determine, before distributing an agenda for any 
regular or special meeting of the Board, whether any item on the agenda is likely to qualify for 
metropolitan planning voting and shall so designate on the agenda. In addition any Voting Board 
Member may, at any meeting of the Board, request consideration of metropolitan planning 
voting for any item on the agenda. 

 In either case, the determination to use metropolitan planning voting for any 
action item on the agenda is at the discretion of the Chair. Such determination must be made in 
a manner consistent with Idaho law.  

 
(a) The Chair shall announce that metropolitan planning voting shall be used 
to resolve the matter before the Board and that only those members who are in 
the metropolitan planning area may vote. 
 
(b) Only Voting Board Members present and representing General and 
Special Purpose Members in the counties in the metropolitan planning area may 
cast a vote on the matter. 
(c) A simple majority of Voting Board Members present from the counties in 

67



Bylaws - 6 

the metropolitan planning area is required to approve the matter before the 
Board. 

(d) Weighted voting for the counties in the metropolitan planning area may be
utilized as provided elsewhere in this section. 

Article 5 
OFFICERS 

5.1 Officers of the Board. The Board shall have four officers (collectively “Officers”): 
(i) the Chair, (ii) the Chair-Elect, (iii) the Vice Chair and (iv) the Secretary/Treasurer. All Officers
must be Voting Board Members. Any Voting Board Member is eligible to serve as an Officer.

5.2 Election. The Officers shall be elected annually by the Board at the Board’s 
annual meeting. 

5.3 Terms of Office. Officers shall hold office until such Officer's successor is elected 
and qualified or until such officer's earlier death, resignation or removal. 

5.4 Removal of Officers. The Board may remove from office any Officer upon two- 
thirds majority vote. If any member of the Board wishes to remove an Officer, that Board member 
shall give at least 30 days’ notice of intent to remove such Officer to both the Officer and to the 
Board. Any Officer subject to removal proceedings shall not take part in the voting to remove 
them. An Officer who is removed shall continue on the Board and retain full voting privileges as 
long as they remain a Voting Board Member. 

5.5 Resignation of Officers. Any Officer may resign at any time by giving written 
notice of his or her resignation to the Board. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time 
specified therein or, if the time when it shall become effective shall not be specified therein, 
immediately upon its receipt. Unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such 
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 

5.6 Appointment of Officers upon Removal or Resignation. Upon the removal or 
resignation of an Officer, the Board shall appoint a Board Member to fill such vacant office. The 
appointed Officer shall serve out the remainder of the term of the removed Officer or the Officer 
who resigned. 

5.7 Succession. Unless other Officers are elected by a majority vote of the Voting 
Board Members at the annual meeting (or special meeting called for the purpose of electing one 
or more Officers) the person serving as Secretary/Treasurer shall be elected to the office of Vice 
Chair, the person serving as Vice Chair shall be elected as Chair-Elect and the person serving as 
Chair-Elect shall be elected Chair. 

5.8 Nomination of Officers. The Executive Committee shall identify and screen 
individuals qualified to become Officers and recommend officers for approval by the Board in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section. 

5.8.1 Nomination. Not less than three (3) months prior to the Board’s annual 
meeting, the Executive Committee shall submit a call for nominations to all Voting Board Members 
for any Officer position to be voted upon that year. Any Voting Board Member may submit a 
nomination for one or more of the Officer positions. All nominations shall be submitted, in writing, 
to the Executive Committee no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the Executive Committee’s 

68



Bylaws - 7 
 

 

regularly scheduled meeting that occurs just prior to the Board’s annual meeting. Any nomination 
received after this deadline shall not be considered. 

5.8.2 Consideration. The Executive Committee shall review all nominations, 
compare the nominees against the qualifications, qualities, skills and other expertise identified by 
the Board, if any, and nominate a slate of candidates to succeed the Officers whose terms are 
expiring or vacant (“Nominated Officers”). The slate may include current Officers for re-election. 
The Executive Committee shall recommend the Nominated Officers to the Board for approval. 

5.8.3 Additional Nominations. In addition to the Nominated Officers, other 
nominations for any Officer’s position may be submitted by any five (5) Voting Board Members if 
filed with the Board not less than fifteen (15) days prior the Board’s annual meeting. 

5.8.4 Election Procedure. No new nominations from the floor shall be 
accepted at the Board’s annual meeting. If the Nominated Officer's slate is the only list of 
nominees under consideration, election of the entire slate shall be decided by a majority vote of 
Voting Board Members present and voting. If there are additional nominees qualifying pursuant 
to Section 5.8.3, the Board shall consider and vote for each Officer position individually. The 
nominee for each Officer position which garners the greatest number of votes shall be elected. 

 
5.9 Duties. 

5.9.1 Chair. The Chair shall be the chief executive officer of COMPASS. The 
Chair shall preside over all meetings of the Board, and shall see that all orders and resolutions of 
the Board are carried into effect, subject, however, to the right of the Board to delegate any 
specific power or authority. The Chair shall be a member of and chair the Executive Committee. 

5.9.2 Chair-Elect. The Chair-Elect shall perform the duties and exercise the 
powers of the Chair in case of the Chair’s illness, disability or temporary absence and shall 
perform such other duties as may, from time to time, be granted or requested by the Board. The 
Chair-Elect shall be a member of the Executive Committee. 

5.9.3 Vice Chair. The Vice Chair shall perform the duties and exercise the 
powers of the Chair in case of the Chair and Chair-Elect’s mutual illness, disability or temporary 
absence and shall perform such other duties as may, from time-to-time, be granted or requested 
by the Board. The Vice Chair shall be a member of the Executive Committee. 

5.9.4 Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall: 

(a) Give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board and its 
standing committees in compliance with Idaho’s “Open Meeting Law” 
including any amendments and/or re-codification of said law which is 
presently codified at Idaho Code §§ 74-201 through 74-207; 

(b) Keep, or cause to be kept, the minutes, books, and records of the financial 
statements and accounts of COMPASS; 

(c) Oversee COMPASS' compliance with Idaho’s Public Records Law 
including any amendments and/or re-codification of said law which is 
presently codified at Idaho Code §§ 74-101 through 74-122; 

(d) Monitor, or cause to be monitored, the financial affairs of COMPASS and 
report periodically to the Board; 

69



Bylaws - 8 
 

 

(e) Create, or cause to be created, at the beginning of each meeting of the 
Board a roster of Voting Board Members and Alternate Board Members 
who are in attendance; and 

(f) Be a member of the Executive Committee. 

(g) Serve as Chair of the Finance Committee. 

5.10 Delegation of Powers. The Board may delegate any of the powers and duties 
appropriate to the functioning of COMPASS to any Officer, employee, or agent of COMPASS. 

 
Article 6  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
6.1 Appointment. The Board shall appoint an Executive Director as provided in the 

JPA.  

6.2 Powers and Duties. The Executive Director is authorized to enter into any 
contract or execute in the name of COMPASS all deeds, bonds, mortgages, contracts, and 
other documents and agreements as may be authorized in the approved Unified Planning Work 
Program and Budget. In all other instances the Executive Director is authorized with Board 
approval. The Executive Director shall be the disbursing officer of COMPASS for all funds made 
available thereto. The Executive Director shall also have the general powers and duties of 
supervision and management, including but not limited to, employment, hiring and dismissal of 
members of the staff. The Executive Director shall have the emergency authority to act to 
protect the rights and interests of COMPASS as they relate to the approved Unified Planning 
Work Program and Budget, pending confirmation by the Board. 

6.3 Committee Assignments. The Executive Director or a designated delegate shall 
be an ex-officio member of any special committee, task force or work group of COMPASS and 
shall periodically attend meetings of other organizations involved in planning within southwest 
Idaho. 

6.4 Conditions of Employment. Salary and other conditions of employment for the 
Executive Director shall be established by the Board upon recommendation by the Executive 
Committee. 

6.5 Regular Reporting Required. The Executive Director shall prepare a summary of 
significant staff activities which have occurred since the last regular meeting of the Board and 
provide it as an item on the agenda of each regular meeting of the Board. The packet for each 
regular meeting of the Executive Committee shall be distributed to the entire Board. 

Article 7 
STANDING COMMITTEES 

7.1 Open Meetings and Public Records. All meetings of committees established and 
authorized under this section shall be conducted according to and be subject to the same open 
meeting law and public records provisions as provided in Sections 4.1.7J and 4.1.7K, respectively, 
of the JPA. 

  

70



Bylaws - 9 
 

 

7.2 Executive Committee: 

7.2.1 Establishment. An Executive Committee is hereby established as a 
standing committee of the Board. 

7.2.2 Membership. The Executive Committee shall be composed of the 
following Board Members: 

(a) All four Board Officers; 

(b) The mayor of each General Member that is an incorporated city with a 
current population greater than 25,000 according to the most recent 
population estimates adopted by the Board; 

(c) The chair of each county commission; 

(d) The president of each single county-wide highway district commission; 

(e) Two mayors of General Members who are incorporated cities with a current 
population of 25,000 or fewer according to the most recent population 
estimates adopted by the Board and who shall annually be selected by the 
representatives of the cities who fit into that classification, provided, 
however, that the total number of mayors on the Executive Committee from 
this grouping of smaller cities shall not exceed two; and provided, further, 
that one of the selected cities must be located in Canyon County and the 
other selected city must be located in Ada County; 

(f) The Chair of one of the highway districts located in Canyon County; and 

(g) The immediate past Chair. 

7.2.3 Limitations. Notwithstanding Sections 7.2.2(b) through 7.2.2(g), there 
shall be no more than one Board Member on the Executive Committee from any member agency. 

7.2.4 Elected Official; Alternate. All Executive Committee members shall 
be currently elected local government officials; provided, however, that Alternate Board Members 
may serve in the place of Executive Committee members as provided in the JPA. 

7.2.5 Place and Times of Meetings. Meetings of the Executive Committee 
may be held at times and places agreed to by the Executive Committee. 

7.2.6 Notice or Call for Meetings. All Executive Committee members shall 
be notified of each meeting at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting. Notification shall 
include, at a minimum, the meeting location, meeting time and proposed agenda. Notification may 
be delivered via email, regular mail or hand delivery. Additionally, notice of each meeting shall 
be posted on the COMPASS website at least three (3) working days prior to the day of the 
meeting. No action may be taken at a meeting that has not met the criteria in this Section. 

7.2.7 Quorum. A quorum shall consist of the presence of a majority of 
Executive Committee members at the time of the meeting. Presence may be established by 
physical attendance at the meeting or by attendance via telephone, Internet or other remote 
technologies. 

71



Bylaws - 10 
 

 

7.2.8 Voting. Each Executive Committee member shall have one (1) vote. 

7.2.9 Action by Majority Vote. Except as otherwise expressly required by 
applicable law, the vote of a majority of the Executive Committee members present at a meeting 
at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Committee. 

7.2.10 Authority. The Executive Committee is empowered to act on behalf of 
the COMPASS Board only in the following instances: 

(a) To receive monthly status updates from the Regional Transportation 
Advisory Committee (RTAC) chair on the work of the RTAC committee; 

(b) To recommend task forces or work groups to work with COMPASS as 
needed to provide input, technical support and feedback on planning 
activities. Each task force or work group shall have a charter recommended 
by the Executive Committee for final approval by the Board, specifying the 
type of members to include, the tasks to accomplish and the timeline for 
completion of those tasks. The Executive Committee shall establish a 
process for selection of members for each task force or work group for final 
approval by the Board; 

(c) To receive periodic status updates from staff liaisons to the active 
authorized work groups on the activities of those work groups; 

(d) To review and recommend updates to the charter of each work group at 
least once per year; 

(e) To authorize the Chair and/or Executive Director to enter into agreements 
with other local, state, regional, federal and private agencies which 
expedite COMPASS’ planning process, pending confirmation by the Board; 

(f) To commit COMPASS staff to address local planning issues, which are 
outside the current Unified Planning Work Program and Budget but for 
which prompt response is essential and for which COMPASS participation 
is deemed desirable, pending confirmation by the Board; 

(g) To approve preliminary versions of the Unified Planning Work Program and 
Budget for purposes of federal grant application and distribution to 
members for their use in budgeting, pending confirmation by the Board; 

(h) To approve amendments to the current Unified Planning Work Program 
and Budget, pending confirmation by the Board; 

(i) To approve amendments to the Transportation Improvement Program 
pending confirmation by the Board; and 

(j) To conduct an annual performance review of the Executive Director and 
report the results of its evaluation and make a recommendation for salary 
adjustment or other compensation arrangements, if any, to the full Board 
for its approval at the regularly scheduled Board meeting in June. The 
effective date for salary adjustment or other compensation arrangements 
shall be October 1 of the upcoming fiscal year. Funding for salary 
adjustments shall be included in the Unified Planning Work Program and 

72



Bylaws - 11 
 

 

Budget for that fiscal year, typically approved by the Board at the regular 
August meeting, prior to the start of the fiscal year. 

7.3 Regional Transportation Advisory Committee. 

7.3.1 Establishment. A Regional Transportation Advisory Committee 
(“RTAC”) is hereby established as a standing committee of the Board. 

7.3.2 Membership. RTAC shall be composed of such individuals as the 
Board may direct. 

7.3.3 Purpose. The purpose of RTAC is to assist COMPASS staff and the 
Board by reviewing and recommending appropriate action(s) to the Board with regard to all 
transportation-related matters to come before the Board. 

7.3.4 Duties. RTAC’s duties are set forth in the bylaws of RTAC. 

7.4 Finance Committee. 

7.4.1 Establishment. A Finance Committee (“Finance Committee”) is 
hereby established as a standing committee of the Board. 

7.4.2 Purpose. The purpose of the Finance Committee is to provide 
guidance to management and to establish reasonable assurance regarding internal policies, 
procedures and controls for the sound operation of COMPASS. 

7.4.3 Duties. The duties of the Finance Committee shall be set forth in the 
bylaws of the Finance Committee. 

7.4.4 Chair. The Chair of the Finance Committee shall be the 
Secretary/Treasurer. 

7.5 Other Committees. The Board may from time to time create other committees as 
it sees fit. Such committees shall be composed of such individuals as the Board may direct and 
shall have only the authority, powers, duties, and responsibilities as may be necessary and as the 
Board may determine. The number and appointment of membership on other committees shall 
be reviewed and approved at the meeting immediately following the creation and appointment of 
the committee and annually thereafter. COMPASS maintains a policy of meaningful participation 
by the public in all of its activities. The Board shall, therefore, consider the inclusion of members 
of the public in the committees it establishes. 

7.6 Bylaws. Bylaws necessary for the operation of any standing or other committee 
created by the Board will be provided by the Board, and thereafter may be amended by the Board, 
from time to time, as the Board deems necessary. 

7.7 Task Forces and Work Groups. The Board may from time to time, either upon 
recommendation by the Executive Committee or upon the Board’s initiative, create task forces 
or work groups to perform specific tasks. All task forces and work groups shall be governed by 
a charter which specifically identifies the membership, assigned tasks and the timeline to 
complete the tasks. Concurrently with the creation of any work group, the Board shall approve 
the charter governing the work group. The charter may be drafted and recommended by the 
Executive Committee to the Board. COMPASS maintains a policy of meaningful participation by 
the public in all of its activities. The Board shall, therefore, consider the inclusion of members of 
the public in the task forces and work groups. 

73



Bylaws - 12 
 

 

Article 8 
MEMBERSHIP DUES 

8.1 General Members. Membership dues for General Members, Special Purpose 
Members and ex officio members shall be as set forth in the JPA. 

8.2 Calculation and Payment of Membership Dues. The Board shall calculate 
membership dues for all members of COMPASS concurrently with the annual Unified Planning 
Work Program and Budget. Upon approval of the membership dues, the Board shall notify each 
member of its membership dues for the ensuing year. All membership dues assessments are 
due and payable upon receipt of each invoice (or such other period of time as may be requested 
by the member and approved by the COMPASS Board). 

8.3 Failure to Pay Membership Dues. Any member agency that fails to pay any 
assessment in full within thirty days after the due date shall be considered delinquent and in 
violation of this section. The Executive Director shall send written notice of delinquency to the 
Mayor and City Clerk, Chair of the Commission and County Auditor, or other governing body of 
the member agency involved. Upon non-payment of the full assessment within thirty days of 
receipt of the delinquency notice, that member agency shall be deemed to have voluntarily 
withdrawn its membership in COMPASS. No representative of that government agency shall 
thereafter be allowed to vote on any matter coming before the Board or any committee until and 
unless membership dues and assessments are fully paid retroactively or until the Board takes 
some alternative action to reinstate the member agency. 

Article 9 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 Books and Records. COMPASS shall maintain adequate and correct books, 
records and accounts of all its obligations, properties, assignments, and other such records or 
accounts as are generated. All such books, records and accounts shall be kept at its main office 
and shall be open to inspection by any General or Special Purpose Member or Board Member at 
any time. 

9.2 Amendment. These bylaws may be amended or repealed and replaced by the 
adoption of such new bylaws as may be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Board at any regular 
meeting provided, however, that such amendment(s) shall be introduced at one regular meeting 
of the Board and may not be voted upon before the next subsequent regular meeting of the Board. 

9.3 Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in these bylaws 
shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the JPA. 
 

Article 10 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

These bylaws shall be effective from and after their adoption until amended or repealed 
in accordance with the provisions set forth in these bylaws. 

DATE OF ADOPTION:   

 
Secretary 
COMPASS Board of Directors 

74



75



76



77



78



COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM VI-D 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic:  Communities in Motion 2055 (CIM 2055) Public Outreach 

Request/Recommendation: 
This is an information item only. 

Background/Summary:  
COMPASS staff are working to update Communities in Motion, the regional long-range 
transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. The updated plan, CIM 2055, is anticipated to 
be complete by December 2027. During this meeting, COMPASS staff will provide an overview of 
upcoming public outreach efforts and demonstrate a draft public survey. 

The COMPASS Board of Directors approved the CIM 2055 goals and objectives in April 2024. 
COMPASS staff have been coordinating with a subcommittee of the Regional Transportation 
Advisory Committee (RTAC) to discuss steps to balance the various goals and objectives for CIM 
2055 in planning and programming efforts.  

The public survey is designed to provide guidance to COMPASS staff, workgroups, and RTAC 
regarding the CIM 2055 funding policy and project prioritization process. Specifically, survey 
results will provide insight on the relative importance of the CIM 2055 goal areas and the most 
important “outcomes” of transportation projects (e.g., increasing reliability, safety, or the 
number of transportation options). 

RTAC reviewed and provided direction the on draft survey in its January 22, 2025, meeting. 

Screen shots of the draft survey are attached. Staff will preview the draft live survey in the 
meeting.  

Next Steps 
• March 3: Launch of survey

o Watch for promotional materials with the link to the survey.
o Please take the survey and share with your colleagues, friends, family, neighbors, etc.
o Please encourage the agency you represent to help share the survey.

• April 3: Close of survey
• April 21: Review survey results at COMPASS Board meeting.

More Information: 
1) Attachment: Draft survey screenshots
2) For detailed information contact: Austin Miller, Planning Team Lead, at 208/475-2239 or

amiller@compassidaho.org or Amy Luft, Communication Team Lead, at 208/475-2229 or
aluft@compassidaho.org. 

T:\FY25\600 Projects\661 Long-Range Planning\CIM 2055\Board\02.24.25 Outreach Memo.docx

79

mailto:amiller@compassidaho.org
mailto:aluft@compassidaho.org


NOTE: The next five pages are screenshots of an online survey; in the “real” survey, 
there will be a continuous flow, without these breaks. 

The goal areas to prioritize are shown on the following page. 

Attachment 

80



81



82



Additional demographic questions are included in the survey, but not shown here 

83



84



COMPASS Staff Activity Report: December 2024 
Staff Updates: 
 Ashley Cannon, Janet Russell, and Meg Sonnen were named COMPASS December Employees

of the Month.

Planning Team 
Team Lead: Austin Miller 
Team Members: Tori Cale, Lila Klopfenstein, Alexa Roitman, Olivia Vielstich McKinnon 
 Developed draft questions for a public survey for Communities in Motion 2055.
 Presented the Communities in Motion 2055 population growth allocation to the COMPASS

Board of Directors.
 Completed four development review checklists.

Resource Development Team 
Team Lead: Toni Tisdale 
Team Members: Matt Carlson, Sherone Sader 
 Processed an amendment to the regional transportation improvement program (TIP) to add

six projects and adjust one project, and processed an administrative modification to adjust six
projects.

 Invited four agencies to submit Phase II applications for 25 projects and provided preliminary
scoring for the applications.

 Continued writing a competitive grant application for the Old Highway 30/West Plymouth
Street Bridge project for Highway District No. 4 and the City of Caldwell.

 Began writing a competitive grant application for the Treasure Valley Southern Connection
planning project for the Idaho Transportation Department.

 Wrote a letter of support for the Ada County Highway District for a Surface Transportation
Block Grant-Rural project application.

 Kicked off two Communities in Motion Implementation Grants; one each for the Ada County
Highway District and the City of Nampa.

Technical Team 
Team Lead: Mary Ann Waldinger 
Team Members: Eric Adolfson, Brian Crowley, Hunter Mulhall 
 Completed one special model run for proposed developments, bringing the total for FY2025 to

six.
 Completed the 2055 population allocation for approval by the COMPASS Board of Directors.
 Presented the final Regional Safety Action Plan to the Regional Transportation Advisory

Committee and received a recommendation of approval.
 Prepared and delivered final 2024 orthophotography flight to member agencies.

85



Communication Team 
Team Lead: Amy Luft 
Team Members: Josie Gallup, Teri Gregory 
 Received Board approval of an updated memorandum of understanding with Valley Regional

Transit.
 Met with the Idaho State Police and Meridian Police Department regarding the “Good Move”

safety education campaign.
 Hosted a meeting to discuss next steps for a potential Canyon County local option registration

fee.
 Presented Leadership in Motion awards honoring five projects and individuals.

Operations Team 
Director of Operations: Meg Sonnen 
Team Members: Ashley Cannon, Janet Russell 
 Presented Revision 1 of the FY2025 Unified Planning Work Program and Budget to the

COMPASS Board of Directors for adoption.
 Received the FY2024 audit report. COMPASS received an unqualified/unmodified (or “clean”)

opinion on the auditors’ report on financial statements.

86



COMPASS Staff Activity Report: January 2025 
Staff Updates: 
 Hunter Mulhall and Matt Carlson were named COMPASS January Employees of the Month.

Planning Team 
Team Lead: Austin Miller 
Team Members: Lila Klopfenstein, Alexa Roitman, Olivia Vielstich McKinnon 
 Presented the Tier 2 screening results to the COMPASS Executive Committee, the Technical

Working Group, and the Community Working Group for the Let’s Ride Treasure Valley High-
Capacity Transit Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL) Study.

 Presented an overview of Let’s Ride Treasure Valley to the City of Nampa’s Transportation
Advisory Group and Valley Regional Transit staff.

 Presented a summary of the Regional Safety Action Plan to the City of Meridian’s
Transportation Commission.

 Hosted a Public Transportation Workgroup meeting.
 Presented on upcoming Communities in Motion 2055 public outreach efforts to RTAC.

Resource Development Team 
Team Lead: Toni Tisdale 
Team Members: Matt Carlson, Sherone Sader 
 Processed one administrative modification to the FY2025-2031 Regional Transportation

Improvement Program to adjust six projects.
 Scored and processed 24 Phase II applications.
 Competed a competitive construction grant application for the Old Highway 30/Plymouth

Street Bridge project for Highway District 4 and the City of Caldwell.
 Completed a competitive planning grant application for the Treasure Valley Southern

Connection for Idaho Transportation Department.
 Wrote letters of support for four RAISE/BUILD grant applications: Ada County Highway

District, Highway District 4, Idaho Transportation Department, and Valley Regional Transit.

Technical Team 
Team Lead: Mary Ann Waldinger 
Team Members: Eric Adolfson, Brian Crowley, Hunter Mulhall 
 Completed 20 special model runs for a feasibility analysis of a project.
 Completed one special model run for a proposed development, bringing the total for fiscal

year 2025 to seven.
 Began compiling and coding building permit data in preparation for the development of annual

population estimate.
 Provided a variety of types of technical support – North Ada Rural Fire district interactive map,

maps for competitive grants, project prioritization, and building the layers to support
converting transportation system data into linear referencing platform.

87



Communication Team 
Team Lead: Amy Luft 
Team Members: Josie Gallup, Teri Gregory 
 Completed the FY2024 annual report.
 Prepared for and hosted two sessions of “COMPASS 101.”
 Sponsored, and judged, a “special award” at the Idaho Future Cities competition.
 Prepared for Education Series presentations on Road Usage Charges, held on February 3 and

4, 2025.
 Prepared for a public comment period on the Let’s Ride Treasure Valley study and a survey for

Communities in Motion 2055.
 Provided an introduction to COMPASS to the Regional Transportation Advisory Committee.

Operations Team 
Director of Operations: Meg Sonnen 
Team Members: Ashley Cannon, Janet Russell 
 Presented Revision 2 of the FY2025 Unified Planning Work Program and Budget to the

COMPASS Finance Committee for recommendation of Executive Committee approval.
 Calculated proposed FY2026 indirect rate and submitted to the Idaho Transportation

Department for approval.

88



COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM VII-B 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic:  Status Report – December Air Quality Data 

Background/Summary: 
The information below provides an overview of Treasure Valley air quality conditions for 
December 2024 from the monitoring locations shown on the map on page 2. Air quality 
conditions are reported in the following categories: 

• Good: Pollution poses little or no risk.
• Moderate: Pollution may pose a moderate risk for a very small number of individuals.
• Unhealthy for Sensitive Groups: Individuals with lung disease, children, and older adults

may experience health effects. The general public is unlikely to be affected.
• Unhealthy / Very Unhealthy: Everyone may begin to experience health effects.
• Hazardous: The entire population is likely to experience serious health effects.

December 2024 Air Quality Data: 
In December 2024, the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality reported 15 days as 
“moderate.” The remaining 16 days were in the “healthy” category.  

The pollutants that triggered the conditions are listed below; descriptions can be found on page 3. 

Moderate:  
• 2 days were attributable to fine particulate matter (PM2.5) recorded in Canyon County.
• 13 days were attributable to PM2.5 recorded in both counties.

Yearly Summary  
The table below summarizes the number of good, moderate, and unhealthy for sensitive groups 
to hazardous days recorded since May 2014.  

Year Good Moderate 
Unhealthy for Sensitive 

Groups to Hazardous Total 
2014 287 75 3 365 
2015 283 64 18 365 
2016 236 120 10 366 
2017 209 127 29 365 
2018 260 97 8 365 
2019 299 65 1 365 
2020 248 97 21 366 
2021 234 114 17 365 
2022 208 147 10 365 
2023 271 91 3 365 
2024 227 104 35 366 

Note: 2016, 2020, and 2024 were leap years, so include one additional day. 

89



Air quality monitoring locations, Ada and Canyon Counties 

90



Pollutant Descriptions 
Carbon 
Monoxide (CO) 

A colorless, odorless, tasteless gas formed in large part by incomplete combustion of fuel. 
Human activities (i.e., transportation or industrial processes) are largely the source for CO 
contamination. 

Oxides of 
nitrogen (NOx) 

NOx is a generic term for mono-nitrogen oxides NO and NO2 (nitric oxide and nitrogen dioxide). 
They are produced from the reaction of nitrogen and oxygen gases in the air during 
combustion, especially at high temperatures. They are precursors (building blocks) of ozone. 

Ozone (O3) A colorless gas with a sweet odor. Ground-level ozone is not a direct emission from 
transportation sources, but is formed when volatile organic compounds, such as pesticides and 
solvents, and NOx combine in the presence of sunlight. Although the ozone in the upper 
atmosphere protects us from harmful ultraviolet rays, ground-level ozone is the main 
component of smog. 

PM2.5 Fine particulate matter, particles smaller than 2.5 microns in diameter, which are more likely to 
lodge in human lungs than larger particles. 

PM10 Coarse particulate matter, particles smaller than 10 microns in diameter, which are more likely 
to lodge in human lungs than larger particles. 

More Information: 
1) For more information, contact MaryAnn Waldinger, Principal Planner, at 208/475-2242 or

mwaldinger@compassidaho.org
2) For detailed information, contact the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality, Michael

Toole, Regional Airshed Coordinator, at 208/373-0550 or Michael.Toole@deq.idaho.gov 

MW:tg T:\FY25\900 Operations\Board\2025 AQ Updates\AQ Update12-2024.docx

91

mailto:mwaldinger@compassidaho.org
mailto:Michael.Toole@deq.idaho.gov


COMPASS BOARD AGENDA ITEM VII-B 
Date: February 24, 2025 

Topic:  Status Report – January Air Quality Data 

Background/Summary:  
The information below provides an overview of Treasure Valley air quality conditions for January 
2025 from the monitoring locations shown on the map on page 2. Air quality conditions are 
reported in the following categories: 

• Good: Pollution poses little or no risk.
• Moderate: Pollution may pose a moderate risk for a very small number of individuals.
• Unhealthy for Sensitive Groups: Individuals with lung disease, children, and older adults

may experience health effects. The general public is unlikely to be affected.
• Unhealthy / Very Unhealthy: Everyone may begin to experience health effects.
• Hazardous: The entire population is likely to experience serious health effects.

January 2025 Air Quality Data: 
In January 2025, the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality reported 10 days as 
“moderate.” The remaining 21 days were in the “healthy” category.  

The pollutants that triggered the conditions are listed below; descriptions can be found on page 3. 

Moderate:  
• 6 days were attributable to fine particulate matter (PM2.5) recorded in Ada County.
• 4 days were attributable to PM2.5 recorded in both counties.

Yearly Summary  
The table below summarizes the number of good, moderate, and unhealthy for sensitive groups 
to hazardous days recorded since January 2015.  

Year Good Moderate 
Unhealthy for Sensitive 

Groups to Hazardous Total 
2015 283 64 18 365 
2016 236 120 10 366 
2017 209 127 29 365 
2018 260 97 8 365 
2019 299 65 1 365 
2020 248 97 21 366 
2021 234 114 17 365 
2022 208 147 10 365 
2023 271 91 3 365 
2024 227 104 35 366 
2025 21 10 0 31 

Note: 2016, 2020, and 2024 were leap years, so include one additional day. 

92



Air quality monitoring locations, Ada and Canyon Counties 

93



Pollutant Descriptions 
Carbon 
Monoxide (CO) 

A colorless, odorless, tasteless gas formed in large part by incomplete combustion of fuel. 
Human activities (i.e., transportation or industrial processes) are largely the source for CO 
contamination. 

Oxides of 
nitrogen (NOx) 

NOx is a generic term for mono-nitrogen oxides NO and NO2 (nitric oxide and nitrogen dioxide). 
They are produced from the reaction of nitrogen and oxygen gases in the air during 
combustion, especially at high temperatures. They are precursors (building blocks) of ozone. 

Ozone (O3) A colorless gas with a sweet odor. Ground-level ozone is not a direct emission from 
transportation sources, but is formed when volatile organic compounds, such as pesticides and 
solvents, and NOx combine in the presence of sunlight. Although the ozone in the upper 
atmosphere protects us from harmful ultraviolet rays, ground-level ozone is the main 
component of smog. 

PM2.5 Fine particulate matter, particles smaller than 2.5 microns in diameter, which are more likely to 
lodge in human lungs than larger particles. 

PM10 Coarse particulate matter, particles smaller than 10 microns in diameter, which are more likely 
to lodge in human lungs than larger particles. 

More Information: 
1) For more information, contact MaryAnn Waldinger, Principal Planner, at 208/475-2242 or

mwaldinger@compassidaho.org
2) For detailed information, contact the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality, Michael

Toole, Regional Airshed Coordinator, at 208/373-0550 or Michael.Toole@deq.idaho.gov 

MW: T:\FY25\900 Operations\Board\2025 AQ Updates\AQ Update01-2025.docx

94

mailto:mwaldinger@compassidaho.org
mailto:Michael.Toole@deq.idaho.gov


Member Agency/Name Jan '25 Feb '25 Mar '25 Apr '25 May '25 June '25 July '25 Aug '25 Sept '25 Oct '25 Nov '25 Dec '25 TOTAL 

Ada County/ S. DuPuis/L. Letson/B. Moore 2 2

ACHD/ T. Ferch/T. Laws/D. Rader 3 3

Boise County/B. Callahan/L. Lindstrom/C. Tucker 2 2

Boise State/ G. Finkelstein 1 1

Canyon County/ M. Barron/D. Lister /D. Root 1 1

Capital City Development Corporation/ Z. Piepmeyer 0 0

City of  Boise/ B. Brush/D. Dupuy/T. Greegor 1 1

City of Caldwell/ H. Hart/W. Herbel 2 2

City of Eagle/ N. Baird Spencer/A. Glaspell 2 2

City of Garden City/ H.Veal 1 1

City of Greenleaf/ L. Belt 1 1

City of Kuna/ T. Behunin/D. Hanson 2 2

City of Melba/ Brent Arte 0 0

City of Meridian/ H. Hill/C. Hood/B. McClure 2 2

City of Middleton/ J. VanGilder 1 1

City of Nampa/ C. Craig/C. Salinas/M. Steuer 3 3

City of Notus/ R. Hartsock 1 1

City of Parma/ B. Laird 0 0

City of Star/ S. Nickel 1 1

City of Wilder/ C. Johnson 0 0

Highway District #4/ J. McMullin 1 1

IDEQ/ M. Toole 1 1

ITD/ A. Bauges 1 1

Public Participation Committee/ J. Wilde 1 1

Valley Regional Transit/ S. Hunt 1 1

West Ada School District/ M. Carson 1 1

Central District Health/ C. Loveless  (Ex-Officio) 1 1

Governor's Office/ J. Neill  (Ex-Officio) 0 0

Greater Boise Auditorium District/ C. Lund (Ex-Officio) 1 1

* - Meeting canceled

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE VII-C

Attendance List 

95



96



97



98


	ADP4265.tmp
	Public Comment Period: January 6 – January 16, 2025
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Response from Valley Regional Transit:
	VRT regularly reports on operating costs (i.e., employees, fuel, preventative maintenance, energy etc.) per passenger mile because those are recurring annual costs. VRT does not report on capital costs (i.e., buses, buildings, bus stops etc.) per passenger mile because those are expenses that provide benefit over many years of service and would need to be compared to the passenger miles over that same time frame.
	 
	Below are the available operating costs per passenger mile that VRT reported to the National Transit Database in 2023. These costs vary substantially for different kinds of service. This is largely because of the varying productivity of the different service types.
	 
	Fixed Route: $3.73 cost per passenger mile
	Demand Response: $11.55 cost per passenger mile
	 
	VRT also supports various specialized transportation services such as Beyond Access which provides shared rides to older adults and persons with disabilities, Meridian Medical Transportation which provides Meridian residents weekday transportation to medical appointments, Meridian Veterans Shuttle which provides service to veterans between Meridian and the Veterans hospital in Boise, Rides2Wellness which provides medical transportation for patients of St. Luke’s, St. Alphonsus and designated clinics, and the Volunteer Driver Program which provides transportation to essential services like medical facilities, social services, nutrition etc. Each of these services would have different costs per passenger mile.
	There are certainly some instances where it would be more cost effective to leverage shared ride services. Valley Regional Transit does this with the VRT Lyft Pass Program and the VRT Late Night program. There are many other cases where public transit services (particularly fixed route services) are either more cost effective or provide a higher level of service than shared ride services. These include frequent corridors such as State St, Fairview, and Vista, where riders don’t need to request a ride for their recurring trips as they would for shared ride services. This also applies to high demand corridors such as Overland, and Emerald where the number of people using the service could not be matched by shared ride services. This is especially the case when you have persons with disability or youth under 18 who are prohibited from taking advantage of shared ride services.
	 
	Finally, transit services not only improve congestion currently, but they are the only motorized mode of transportation that has the capacity to reduce/limit congestion even as transportation demand increases. Also, many of the capital investments that are necessary for public transportation, such as safe, accessible sidewalks, are of benefit to the non-riding public as well. Valley Regional Transit frequently partners with local jurisdictions to improve their non-motorized infrastructure. The benefits of these investments are felt by transit riders and non-riders alike.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the City of Nampa, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.

	ADPD9DF.tmp
	Article 1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Article 2 BOARD MEETINGS
	Article 3 AUTHORITY
	Article 4 VOTING
	Article 5 OFFICERS
	5.9 Duties.
	Article 6 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
	Article 7 STANDING COMMITTEES
	7.2 Executive Committee:
	7.3 Regional Transportation Advisory Committee.
	7.4 Finance Committee.
	Article 8 MEMBERSHIP DUES
	Article 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Article 10 EFFECTIVE DATE

	ADP65F5.tmp
	Public Comment Period: January 6 – January 16, 2025
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Response from Valley Regional Transit:
	VRT regularly reports on operating costs (i.e., employees, fuel, preventative maintenance, energy etc.) per passenger mile because those are recurring annual costs. VRT does not report on capital costs (i.e., buses, buildings, bus stops etc.) per passenger mile because those are expenses that provide benefit over many years of service and would need to be compared to the passenger miles over that same time frame.
	 
	Below are the available operating costs per passenger mile that VRT reported to the National Transit Database in 2023. These costs vary substantially for different kinds of service. This is largely because of the varying productivity of the different service types.
	 
	Fixed Route: $3.73 cost per passenger mile
	Demand Response: $11.55 cost per passenger mile
	 
	VRT also supports various specialized transportation services such as Beyond Access which provides shared rides to older adults and persons with disabilities, Meridian Medical Transportation which provides Meridian residents weekday transportation to medical appointments, Meridian Veterans Shuttle which provides service to veterans between Meridian and the Veterans hospital in Boise, Rides2Wellness which provides medical transportation for patients of St. Luke’s, St. Alphonsus and designated clinics, and the Volunteer Driver Program which provides transportation to essential services like medical facilities, social services, nutrition etc. Each of these services would have different costs per passenger mile.
	There are certainly some instances where it would be more cost effective to leverage shared ride services. Valley Regional Transit does this with the VRT Lyft Pass Program and the VRT Late Night program. There are many other cases where public transit services (particularly fixed route services) are either more cost effective or provide a higher level of service than shared ride services. These include frequent corridors such as State St, Fairview, and Vista, where riders don’t need to request a ride for their recurring trips as they would for shared ride services. This also applies to high demand corridors such as Overland, and Emerald where the number of people using the service could not be matched by shared ride services. This is especially the case when you have persons with disability or youth under 18 who are prohibited from taking advantage of shared ride services.
	 
	Finally, transit services not only improve congestion currently, but they are the only motorized mode of transportation that has the capacity to reduce/limit congestion even as transportation demand increases. Also, many of the capital investments that are necessary for public transportation, such as safe, accessible sidewalks, are of benefit to the non-riding public as well. Valley Regional Transit frequently partners with local jurisdictions to improve their non-motorized infrastructure. The benefits of these investments are felt by transit riders and non-riders alike.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the City of Nampa, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.

	ADP230F.tmp
	Article 1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Article 2 BOARD MEETINGS
	Article 3 AUTHORITY
	Article 4 VOTING
	Article 5 OFFICERS
	5.9 Duties.
	Article 6 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
	Article 7 STANDING COMMITTEES
	7.2 Executive Committee:
	7.3 Regional Transportation Advisory Committee.
	7.4 Finance Committee.
	Article 8 MEMBERSHIP DUES
	Article 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Article 10 EFFECTIVE DATE

	ADP1989.tmp
	Article 1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Article 2 BOARD MEETINGS
	Article 3 AUTHORITY
	Article 4 VOTING
	Article 5 OFFICERS
	5.9 Duties.
	Article 6 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
	Article 7 STANDING COMMITTEES
	7.2 Executive Committee:
	7.3 Regional Transportation Advisory Committee.
	7.4 Finance Committee.
	Article 8 MEMBERSHIP DUES
	Article 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Article 10 EFFECTIVE DATE

	VI C 2 Attachment 1 COMPASS Proposed Bylaws Revision 2025.pdf
	Article 1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Article 2 BOARD MEETINGS
	Article 3 AUTHORITY
	Article 4 VOTING
	Article 5 OFFICERS
	5.9 Duties.
	Article 6
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
	6.1 Appointment. The Board shall appoint an Executive Director as provided in the JPA.
	Article 7 STANDING COMMITTEES
	7.2 Executive Committee:
	7.3 Regional Transportation Advisory Committee.
	7.4 Finance Committee.
	Article 8 MEMBERSHIP DUES
	Article 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Article 10 EFFECTIVE DATE

	ADP3178.tmp
	Public Comment Period: January 6 – January 16, 2025
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Response from Valley Regional Transit:
	VRT regularly reports on operating costs (i.e., employees, fuel, preventative maintenance, energy etc.) per passenger mile because those are recurring annual costs. VRT does not report on capital costs (i.e., buses, buildings, bus stops etc.) per passenger mile because those are expenses that provide benefit over many years of service and would need to be compared to the passenger miles over that same time frame.
	 
	Below are the available operating costs per passenger mile that VRT reported to the National Transit Database in 2023. These costs vary substantially for different kinds of service. This is largely because of the varying productivity of the different service types.
	 
	Fixed Route: $3.73 cost per passenger mile
	Demand Response: $11.55 cost per passenger mile
	 
	VRT also supports various specialized transportation services such as Beyond Access which provides shared rides to older adults and persons with disabilities, Meridian Medical Transportation which provides Meridian residents weekday transportation to medical appointments, Meridian Veterans Shuttle which provides service to veterans between Meridian and the Veterans hospital in Boise, Rides2Wellness which provides medical transportation for patients of St. Luke’s, St. Alphonsus and designated clinics, and the Volunteer Driver Program which provides transportation to essential services like medical facilities, social services, nutrition etc. Each of these services would have different costs per passenger mile.
	There are certainly some instances where it would be more cost effective to leverage shared ride services. Valley Regional Transit does this with the VRT Lyft Pass Program and the VRT Late Night program. There are many other cases where public transit services (particularly fixed route services) are either more cost effective or provide a higher level of service than shared ride services. These include frequent corridors such as State St, Fairview, and Vista, where riders don’t need to request a ride for their recurring trips as they would for shared ride services. This also applies to high demand corridors such as Overland, and Emerald where the number of people using the service could not be matched by shared ride services. This is especially the case when you have persons with disability or youth under 18 who are prohibited from taking advantage of shared ride services.
	 
	Finally, transit services not only improve congestion currently, but they are the only motorized mode of transportation that has the capacity to reduce/limit congestion even as transportation demand increases. Also, many of the capital investments that are necessary for public transportation, such as safe, accessible sidewalks, are of benefit to the non-riding public as well. Valley Regional Transit frequently partners with local jurisdictions to improve their non-motorized infrastructure. The benefits of these investments are felt by transit riders and non-riders alike.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit, the City of Nampa, the Idaho Transportation Department, and the COMPASS Board of Directors.
	Thank you for your comments; they will be shared with Valley Regional Transit and the COMPASS Board of Directors.




